# Agenda

# **GO Virginia Region 2 Council Meeting**

October 2, 2017 9 a.m. – 11 a.m.

### Location

Virginia Western Room HP210 Fralin Center 3091 Colonial Ave. SW Roanoke, VA 24015

# **Schedule**

9:00-9:05	Welcome and Introductions
9:05-9:45	Council action on project application process
9:45-10:15	Discussion of communications plan and outreach to potential applicants
10:15-10:30	Update on response to request for letters of interest
10:30-11:00	Other state, administrative, and council updates



# **Draft Grant Application**

October 2017





# Table of Contents

Overview	3
Available funds	
Funding Match	3
Letters of Interest and Regional Capacity Building	4
Eligible Applicants	5
Full application submission	5
Project evaluation criteria	5
Project evaluation process	7
Anticipated timeline for 2017	8
Application instructions	9
Part 1: Applicant information Form	10
Economic Impact	11
Regional Collaboration	14
Project Readiness	16
Project Sustainability	10



# **Grant Application**

#### Overview:

The Region 2 GO Virginia Council is now accepting proposals for funding. Region 2 includes the counties of Alleghany, Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, Botetourt, Campbell, Craig, Floyd, Franklin, Giles, Montgomery, Pulaski, and Roanoke; as well as the independent cities of Covington, Lynchburg, Radford, Roanoke, and Salem.

At this stage, approximately \$1.01 million in state funds are available for award in this region, and \$11.2 million in competitive state-wide funds are expected to be available. The Council anticipates granting multiple funding awards at varying amounts. GO Virginia funding seeks to grow jobs that pay higher than the regional median wage (\$18/hour or \$37,000 annually), primarily from out-of-state revenue. This requires a focus on industries with high growth potential, featuring in-demand occupations with higher wages.

#### **Available funds:**

The Region 2 GO Virginia Council anticipates funding multiple awards ranging from \$50,000-\$300,000 per award. All projects must be completed within two years of funding. The Region 2 Council expects to disburse the vast majority of funds for collaborative grant projects as described below. All proposals must respond directly to the Region 2 Growth & Diversification Plan which can be found at the following link: http://bit.ly/2ws9BI8

There may be rare instances, however, where the Region 2 Council may award capacity building funds for a project not otherwise suitable for a collaborative grant award. During the project review process, Region 2 Council support organization personnel may advise applicants as to the degree to which their proposal is congruent with state and regional guidelines. Support organization staff may also discuss the appropriateness of capacity building awards, for projects that would not have direct economic outcomes. As an example, a larger future project request might require pre-development activities, which the Council may want to encourage through a small amount of capacity-building award funding.

#### **Funding Match:**

A dollar for dollar match is required for any grant request. The match must come from non-state appropriated sources such as non-state public entities, private, federal, or local funds.

In addition to the dollar for dollar baseline match requirement, it is the goal of the State Board that there be a contribution from localities (2 or more counties or cities) of not less than 20% of the required match, or \$50,000, whichever is greater, in the aggregate.

The State GO Virginia Board may waive this requirement of locality match, to half of the required amount, upon a finding of fiscal distress or an exceptional economic opportunity within the collaborating localities. Likewise, the locality match may also be waived for projects that clearly benefit more than 50% of the regions' population.

This local contribution may come from any combination of the participating localities and political subdivisions and may take the form of cash, revenue sharing, dedication of locally-owned or controlled assets to the proposed regional project, reallocation of existing funds, in kind contributions, or other



local resources. Also, existing investments by localities and political subdivisions that are redirected, repurposed, or refocused towards collaborative regional grant requests will count as local match. Please note that the State Board also reserves the right to waive the local contribution for enhanced capacity building projects that demonstrate an ability to benefit multiple GO Virginia regions or grant requests.

Applicants should clearly identify how the participating localities will make available the required local contribution. The application should also outline the status of the other non-local government contributions to the project.

#### **Letters of Interest and Regional Capacity Building:**

While not required, potentially interested applicants are encouraged to submit a no more than 2 page letter of interest that:

- Includes the name and contact information of the expected primary applicant
- Identifies Region 2 jurisdictions to be impacted/involved
- Includes list of partners and collaborators
- Provides a brief narrative description of the project (250 words max)
- Identifies total budget costs including anticipated GO Virginia request and matching fund sources
- Includes a clear description of expected outcome or result clearly describing how the project would spur growth of higher-wage jobs in one or more of Region 2's priority clusters AND respond to one or more of the identified strategies in the Region 2 Economic Growth and Diversification Plan

Interested applicants should review the Region 2 Growth & Diversification Plan prior to submitting their inquiry or application. The plan can be found at the following link: http://bit.ly/2ws9BI8

The letter of interest process is an optional, non-binding step intended to support possible applicants by eliciting feedback and guidance on the appropriateness of potential projects for GO Virginia funding. The formal application may have additional or refined requirements and the state GO Virginia Board or Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development may provide additional or alternative guidance.

Applicants may submit letters of interest at any time. Letters of interest should be submitted electronically to:

John Provo, Ph.D.

Director, Virginia Tech Office of Economic Development
702 Univeristy City Blvd., Mail Code 0373

Blacksburg, VA 24061

jprovo@vt.edu

Within 30 days of receipt, Region 2 staff will contact inquirers to discuss the projects and to answer questions about alignment for a formal application. This is a capacity-building function intended to support applicants and further the development of a strong pool of fundable applications. For questions prior to submission, please contact John Provo via email jprovo@vt.edu or by phone 540-231-5278.



#### **Eligible Applicants:**

Region 2 includes the counties of Alleghany, Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, Botetourt, Campbell, Craig, Floyd, Franklin, Giles, Montgomery, Pulaski, and Roanoke; as well as the independent cities of Covington, Lynchburg, Radford, Roanoke, and Salem. Proposals require the collaboration of at least two localities, which may be any combination of counties, cities and towns and/or political subdivisions, public bodies corporate and politic, along with other public or private entities. Political subdivisions or public bodies corporate that represent the same county or city will not be counted as a separate locality. Public or private entities that may pursue and administer grant funding include, but are not limited to, other political subdivisions of the state, foundations, non-profit entities, colleges and universities, other educational entities, economic development organizations, workforce boards, local governments, regional council support organizations, and other stakeholders. A town, with the county that surrounds it, may petition the Board for the ability to apply for a grant, if the parties can demonstrate that their collaboration is substantive and aligned with the goals of GO Virginia.

While a private company may apply, in cooperation with the collaborating localities and other stakeholders, to participate in or manage a project, grant funds are not to be used as economic development incentive payments or to promote the activities of a single entity. Instead, grant funds are to be used to support the implementation of requests aligned with plan priorities and that offer broad community benefits. Financial participation by the collaborating localities is required as part of any application for a grant allocation, and the minimum threshold for such participation is outlined in the funding match section of these guidelines. The roles of the various participants in applying for and administering a proposed project shall also be set forth in the grant application.

#### Full application submission:

Full applications for the first round of GO Virginia Region 2 Council funding are may be submitted on a rolling basis beginning on October 11, 2017. Applicants should submit applications electronically via the Virginia Tech Continuing & Professional Education registration site at this web address:

First-time users are required to register to create user and password information. The site has security measures in place to protect the loss, misuse, and alteration of the information under our control. Log file access is restricted to system administrators while stored on the server. Log files are rotated regularly and archived in a secure location. User and password information is encrypted before it is transmitted across the network. Virginia Tech complies with all statutory and legal requirements with respect to access to information.

#### Project evaluation criteria:

- Economic impact (35%):
  - To what extent does the project spur the growth of higher-wage jobs in one or more of Region 2's priority clusters: manufacturing; life sciences and health care; food and beverage processing; and emerging technologies and IT?
  - To what extent does the project respond to one of the strategies in the Region 2 Economic Growth and Diversification Plan related to: advancing technology and high-growth clusters; growing skilled talent; supporting entrepreneurship; and collaborative development of sites and buildings?



To what extent, does the proposal outline the expected return on investment of the proposed project and the timeline for achieving that return?

#### Regional collaboration (30%)

- To what extent does the project show evidence of widespread benefit to the larger region?
- To what extent does the project engage localities and partnerships (including private or corporate partnership)?
- To what extent does the project identify cost efficiencies, repurposing of existing funds, leveraging of existing assets or other evidence of collaboration benefits?
- To what extent has the project involved businesses, colleges and universities, and other public and private entities within the region in the conceptualization of and the implementation of the project?
- To what extent does the amount, timing, and form of the proposed project match indicate the depth of the commitment by the public and private funding partners to the effort?
- To what extent does the proposed project inventory related efforts and seek to ensure it is not duplicative of, but additive to, other efforts to support economic diversification and the creation of more higher-paying jobs?

#### Project readiness (20%)

- To what extent do the applicant and project partners demonstrate and describe capabilities to successfully execute the project?
- To what extent does the proposed project fully assess the barriers to successful implementation and other associated risks along with a plan to overcome them?
- To what extent do the project partners and lead entities have sufficient financial management, personnel, and organizational capacity to ensure effective management and compliance?

#### Project sustainability and innovation (15%)

- To what extent is the project innovative, forward looking, and offers potential to promote sustainable long-term economic growth in the region?
- To what extent does the project provide a plan for sustainability beyond GO Virginia funding, if appropriate?
- To what extent does the project demonstrate leverage above the required amounts, from any source?

The anticipated return on investment of a proposed project resulting from the GO grants is one of the key measures to be used by the Board in making funding allocations. In calculating the anticipated return on investment for proposed grant requests, applicants should outline the anticipated jobs and capital investment that could accrue from the project over a two-year period that aligns with the likely payout schedule of a grant, as well as over the longer term. Using those factors, the applicant should



outline the anticipated state and local tax revenues that will result from the proposed activity. When determining the economic impact of a proposed grant request, the Board will give preference to those applications which can demonstrate that the GO Virginia portion of the grant is recouped within three years, however, projects that may have a smaller return in the initial phases, but a larger anticipated longer term impact (taking into account the likelihood of future success) will received special consideration. In addition to these objective factors, applicants should outline other measures of success, such as new collaborative agreements, revenue sharing, cost savings and efficiencies resulting from the project, or other items that can be used by the Board to understand the financial viability of the project. Another variable that the Board will use in determining the return on investment is any information provided by the applicant about previous successes involving the applicant on similar initiatives. It is understood that certain project types will have a longer timetable to achieve their expected return on investment.

Projects will NOT be eligible for Council funding if the funds impact only a single locality; focus on quality of life activities; support trade missions; fund construction or transportation projects; fund museum or entertainment venues; or lack alternative or matching funding.

#### **Project evaluation process:**

Once submitted, Region 2 Council support organization staff will perform a technical review of all completed applications to assess compliance with minimum criteria and eligibility. Applications that meet the threshold criteria will be sorted into groups based on their fit with the plan's four strategy areas: advancing technology and high-growth clusters; growing skilled talent; supporting entrepreneurship; and collaborative development of sites and buildings. While a project may very well impact more than one of these strategy areas, a small review team of subject-matter experts and Council staff will be identified for each of these topics. The subject-matter experts and Council staff will review applications and provide their evaluations. All applications and the assessments will be sent to the Region 2 Council for review and action. The Region 2 Council, at their discretion and in some instances, may ask qualified applicants to appear in-person to provide additional information. Subsequent to the review and approval by the Region 2 Council, the state GO Virginia Board must also review and provide final approval of all applications.

The Virginia Tech Office of Economic Development serves as the support organization for the Region 2 Council. In cases where Virginia Tech should appear as a primary applicant for Council funding, the technical and subject matter review will be led by representatives from a regional entity not directly associated with Virginia Tech.

Region 2 staff will ensure that any reviewers who are full-time employees of applicant organizations, will not perform reviews of their employer organizations. In some instances, reviewers may also have an interest in or connection to one or more of the applicant organizations (such as serving as a board member or volunteer). Region 2 staff will expect reviewers and applicants to disclose any such connections.



#### **Anticipated timeline for 2017:**

September 2017 Begin accepting Letters of Interest on a rolling basis

October-November 2017 Region 2 support organization staff responds to Letters of Interest and

assists and advises interested applicants

Region 2 Council holds Kick-Off Event

Region 2 Council staff conducts three Community Meetings/Application

Assistance workshops (1 in each PDC service area)

October 11, 2017 Application portal opens and completed applications begin being

accepted on a rolling basis.

October 20, 2017 For full consideration for possible review by GO Virginia State Board in

December 2017, applications are encouraged by 5 pm on October 20,

2017.

October 2017 Staff and Subject Matter experts begin review of applications and

provide evaluations to Council. This continues on an ongoing basis.

October 30, 2017 Region 2 Council meets and considers any completed and reviewed

applications received to date. Any proposals recommended for funding

are submitted to Virginia Department of Housing and Community

Development and state GO Virginia Board for additional review and final

approval at December board meeting.

November 15, 2017 For full consideration for possible review by GO Virginia State Board in

February 2018, applications are encouraged by 5 pm on November 15,

2017.

December 2017 Region 2 Council meets and considers any completed and reviewed

applications received to date. Any proposals recommended for funding

are submitted to Virginia Department of Housing and Community

Development and state GO Virginia Board for additional review and final

approval at February GO Virginia board meeting.



#### **Application instructions:**

The application process is an on-line form and applicants should visit this link to access the site: [insert hyperlink].

For preparation purposes, the submission information is detailed on the pages that follow and consists of general applicant information form, a project narrative divided into a number of sub-questions, a one-page executive summary, a project budget, and supporting documentation as appropriate.



CVIRGINIA	VIRGINIA INITIATIVE FOR GROWTH & OPPORTUNITY IN EACH REGION
Part 1: Applicant inf	ormation For

tion Form	l 			
				FIN
				EIN:
				Phone:
her each c	of the localities	listed is in	your proje	ct's primary service area:
Y	'ES/NO		City	YES/NO
			rg	
		-		
		-	9	
		Salem		
		Total	Droinet Co	at.
isteu.		10tai	Project Co	
r project if	different than	applicant:		
ners active	ely contributing	resources	to this pro	oject:
	Total Contri	bution	Cash	Non-Cash
	cher each o	YES/NO  Pested:  r project if different than there actively contributing	cher each of the localities listed is in  YES/NO  Covingto Lynchbu Radford Roanoke Salem  ested: Total r project if different than applicant:	ther each of the localities listed is in your project YES/NO City  Covington Lynchburg Radford Roanoke Salem  Ested: Total Project Corproject if different than applicant: the project to this project actively contributing resources to this project.





#### **Economic Impact.**

1.	Provide a detailed description of the proposed project. Identify the project goals, approach, timeline of project activities, outcomes, and how it relates to the region's Economic Growth and Diversification Plan, the priority industry clusters, and the goals of GO Virginia.





2.	Provide a detailed description of the metrics you will use to quantify success. Include the expected Return on Investment of the project and the associated timeline. Return on investment may include jobs, capital investments, tax revenue generated, as other measures of success (i.e. new collaborative agreements, revenue sharing, cost savings, and efficiencies), as a result of the proposed project. Specifically, demonstrate that the GO Virginia portion of the grant is recouped within three years. Please upload performance metrics and ROI as attachments.



3.	List the qualitative as well as the anticipated tangible results that will come from the collaboration. Include project milestones which can be used to gauge project progress and fun disbursement. Include a proposed schedule of funding draw downs. Please upload your milestone document to be tracked on a quarterly basis.
	minestone document to be trucked on a quarterly basis.



#### **Regional Collaboration**

- 4. Describe the service area of the project and include a list of localities within the region that are participating.
  - a. What portion of the region's population is represented by the participating localities?

b.	Are there localities or regions (including interstate collaborations) that are outside applying
	region that are participating in the project? If so, describe the nature of the collaboration
	and the anticipated impact.

5.	Identify cost efficiencies, repurposing of existing funds, leveraging of existing assets, or other evidence of collaboration that can be demonstrated as a result of the project.





6.	Provide a description of the role of the businesses, colleges and universities, and other public and private entities within the region that will be involved in the implementation of the project. Include the amount, timing, and form of the proposed project match by the public and private funding partners in the effort.
7.	Discuss existing grant requests or programs with similar goals and indicate how the proposed project is not duplicative of, but additive to, other efforts to support economic diversification and the creation of more higher-paying jobs.



## **Project Readiness**

8.	Discuss the project partners and their capability to successfully execute this project. Include a discussion of the financial management and personnel capacity of the administrating agency.
9.	Discuss any major barriers to successful implementation and other associated risks along with a plan to overcome them.





	e project may be coordinated with other existing efforts in the region.
11. Discuss any othe project successfo	r activities or pre-existing work that have laid the groundwork to get this ally launched.
, ,	
	•





12. Descril resour	pe the amount, timing, and form of proposed match, and any additional contributing ces.
<ul> <li>13. Is this project applying for capacity building funds as opposed to collaborative project funda. If so, list how this program will address any regional gaps and strengthen resource structures?</li> <li>b. Discuss how this project might contribute to success of future grant requests and the project might be remarkable or even replicable.</li> </ul>	



#### **Project Sustainability**

14. Describe your ability to meet the project performance metrics and to take remedial actions the event those measures are not achieved. Discuss how the program will achieve stable, lo term sustainability past the initial funding period.	

15. Provide a one page summary of the project application to include the following key pieces of information: project summary, connection to priorities in Economic Growth and Diversification Plan, ROI in terms of higher paying jobs and out of state investment, transformative nature of project, localities involved, and partners.

# GO Virginia Region 2

#### Outreach and Communication Outline

October Kick-off meeting/press event Potentially at Volvo in Dublin

**Community Meetings (ongoing)** At least 3 meetings this fall, including 1 in each PDC area

(potentially in Lynchburg, Allegheny County, and third location).

These are to help provide information and guidance to

applicants.

Direct email outreach to potential applicants

Council staff and Council members

email proposal information to networks and contacts

Staff can utilize robust regional list-serv

Need for Council members and partner organizations to assist

Social media Utilize twitter, Facebook, and other platforms of Council staff,

Council members, and key organization partners

**Television/radio** Encourage coverage of October kick-off event

Print media Roanoke Times information on application process

**Council members** Assist with these strategies and events and help connect with

your colleagues and geographic areas to connect with potential

applicants and spread awareness of the meetings

# GO Virginia Region 2 Council Meeting Minutes August 24<sup>th</sup>, 2017 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

**Location** Carillion Clinic 1 Riverside Circle Roanoke, VA 24016

<u>Council Members in Attendance:</u> Marla Akridge, Dr. Eddie Amos, Dr. Nathaniel Bishop, Ab Boxley, Dr. John Capps, Patrick Collignon, Kenneth Craig, Sandy Davis, Dr. John Dooley, William Fralin, Watt Foster, Don Halliwill, Mike Hamlar, Dr. Victor Ianello, Terry Jamerson, Debbie Petrine, John Williamson

#### Council Members in Attendance via Conference Call: John Putney

Others in attendance: Duncan Adams, Jenny Bolte, Dr. Kay Dunkley, Dr. Sam English, Devon Johnson, Rob Ledger, Marc Nelson, Patrick Obrien, William Pace, Dr. John Provo, Sharon Scott, Dr. Scott Tate, Joyce Waugh, Sherri Winesett, Anne Whittaker, Dwane Yancey

- I. Call to Order
  - a. Vice Chairman Boxley convened the meeting of the GO Virginia Region 2 Council on August, 24, 2017 at Carillion Clinic at 2:03 p.m.
- II. Presentation of the Growth and Diversification Plan
  - a. Mr. Boxley noted the need to submit the Growth and Diversification plan to the state tomorrow (August 25) and asked Dr. Provo and Dr. Tate to provide a brief introduction to the Growth and Diversification Plan (see PowerPoint slides attached)
  - b. Introduction and overview (PowerPoint slides 1-4)
    - i. Mr. Fralin asked for clarification on the meaning of "competitive effect" Dr. Provo explained that it refers to an "above and beyond number", that approximates industry job growth attributed to regional factors as opposed to national trends..
    - ii. <u>Discussion of cluster categories (slides 3-4)</u>: Mr. Fralin noted that the document is very helpful and asked whether the large cluster categories should be made more specific (for example, one of the appendices refers to "machinists" and it could be specified exactly which kind of machinists). Mr. Amos added that there are lots of areas where cluster categories overlap, and he asked about the way these sectors are organized and if this organization system misses the synergy between clusters.
    - iii. <u>Discussion of food and beverage cluster (slide 4)</u>: Dr. Provo drew attention to the small yellow bubble on the "priority industry clusters" graph (see slide 4) that represents the food and beverage processing cluster and noted that there is potential for growth here, though there are fewer of those jobs now (and these jobs have lower wages). Mr. Fralin added that it makes sense as a forward look, especially considering that the region has good water quality for beverage processing, and because the region is close to both Atlanta and New York.

iv. Additional questions about priority industry clusters: Mr. Amos asked why transportation is not on the "priority industry clusters" graph (see slide 4). Dr. Provo responded, saying that the overall wages are lower, and the industry does not expect significant higher-wage job growth. Mr. Iannello noted that the region has competitive advantages that are not often recognized--for example, autonomous vehicles (at Virginia Tech as well as Volvo and Eldor). Mr. Iannello added that those may not show up in a NAICS type analysis. Mr. Amos added that the council needs to make sure the adjacencies between clusters are clearly visible, and the council needs to think about things that will be important for the future of smart cities.

#### c. Talent Development (slides 6-9)

- i. Mr. Williamson asked why the report used the word "talent" instead of skills. Dr. Tate responded that talent is broader and that skills are a key component.
- ii. Mr. Fralin asked about the "2% higher" cost of living statistic, and Dr. Tate directed him to the newer draft which shows cost of living is 10% lower than national average.
- iii. <u>Discussion of age trends and talent retention</u>: Mr. Fralin emphasized how interesting it is that the region has so many undergraduate students. Mr. Collignon, noted that the high number of young people illustrated on slide 8 may be due to career position and said his company has found it harder to recruit executives and later career individuals to the area. Mr. Williamson said that it's worth investing in efforts to promote the region as a good place to live and noted Mr. Amos and Meridium's effort to promote the region. Ms. Petrine added that she was at a meeting at Virginia Tech where University officials said they had trouble recruiting faculty and staff because the university is located in Southwest Virginia.

#### d. Sites and Buildings (slides 10-12)

i. <u>Discussion of redevelopment</u>: William Fralin noted that the region should get people to focus on "redevelopment" of old manufacturing sites and find a way to redevelop our properties better than anyone else. Mr. Williamson added that the old Norfolk Southern buildings are not being used. Mr. Amos noted that the old Gillette building in Boston has been redeveloped and houses GE. Mr. Fralin requested that staff change report phrasing to acknowledge both development and redevelopment.

#### e. Entrepreneurship and Business Development (slides 13-15)

i. <u>Discussion of startups</u>: Mr. Boxley asked for clarification on the supply chain of businesses in the region. Mr. Fralin noted that it's difficult to raise capital in region. Mr. Iannello added that the way the region gets more startups is to have better "exits" for them. Mr. Iannello added that though there is not a lot of capital in region, there's still substantial amounts. Mr. Amos asked Mr. Iannello if the region overstresses the importance of startups (asking, "For example, is it better to have 10 struggling startups, or bring in one good established business?"). Mr. Amos responded by describing the startup environment in India and noting that the question is, "How do we build a base of businesses so that startups will come?" Mr. Collignon added that China is also very strategic about which battles they fight and the council should embrace a clear goal and clearly identify which battle to fight.

ii. Mr. Fralin asked where outdoor branding fits in given that we're prohibited from looking at quality of life projects. He noted that branding is very advantageous to attend to talent retention and attraction.

#### f. Technology Development (slides 16-17)

i. Mr. Amos noted that IT is not the best word to use, as it often refers to people working on servers, and added that Washington State should be our model for feeding talent into industry.

#### g. Implementation (slides 18-20)

- i. Mr. Fralin asked if the "collaboration among localities" requirement for funding means collaboration between Roanoke and Virginia Tech. Dr. Provo responded that we are waiting for the final state evaluation criteria. Dr. Dooley and Mr. Williamson expressed their opinion that higher education institutions should qualify as entities.
- ii. Mr. Boxley said he wants to know what meaningful project match means.

#### h. Discussion

- i. <u>Discussion of clusters:</u> Mr. Foster asked about the clusters, expressing concern that trade and transportation is not a cluster but it has the greatest number of jobs, explaining that he struggles to find qualified truck drivers. Mr. Williamson asked if transportation needed to be defined as a cluster in order for the council to award funding for transportation-based projects. Mr. Collignon noted that if the issue is availability of drivers, it falls into the "talent" strategic priority.
- ii. <u>Discussion of renewables:</u> Mr. Amos noted that renewable energy is growing rapidly and the region has resources to contribute. He asked if this represents a sector the council should leverage. Dr. Tate said the employment there is still not great enough to be a whole cluster, though that does not preclude the possibility of funding a renewable-based project that targeted needs in one of the four clusters.
- iii. Mr. Fralin noted that the idea of the GO Virginia legislation is to find out what a region's strengths are, market them and move them forward, and therefore the council is better off narrowing its scope. For example, in our emerging technologies, the council could decide if it really wants to focus on renewables.
- iv. Dr. Dooley asked if the council can amend the plan after it is submitted. Dr. Provo said the council could think about interpreting the report as the council drafts its final review criteria.

#### i. Public Comment

- i. Mr. English asked for clarification on the RFI process and how the council will advertise and bring in people.
- ii. Mr. Ledger applauded the fact that the clusters are broad and noted that we don't know what's ahead in the next few years, things may emerge in the next five years so broader is better. He also urged the council to be careful about using the last ten years as a benchmark because "the last decade was chaos."
- iii. Ms. Whittaker said it's important to think about k-12 education and added that success does not always mean a college degree. She emphasized the need to partner businesses with school divisions.
- j. <u>Approval:</u> Dr. Dooley moved to approve the draft plan. Mr. Williamson seconded the motion. All those present were in favor and none were opposed.

- III. Mr. Boxley noted the need to address housekeeping and administrative details
  - a. Mr. Williamson moved to approve the July 25 minutes. Ms. Akridge seconded the motion. All those present were in favor and none were opposed.
- IV. Mr. Boxley adjourned the meeting at 4:05 p.m.